Oklahoma Firefighters’ Pension and Retirement System

International Equity Manager Search

RFP Questions and Answers
1. Will the System accept two proposals from one manager?
A manager can submit separate proposals for each strategy that you wish to have considered.
2. Does the System prefer a commingled vehicle or a separate account?  Will the System consider mutual fund vehicles?
The System will consider either separate accounts or commingled funds for this particular search. The System currently does not invest through any mutual fund vehicles.  Currently, all of the System’s international exposure is managed through separately managed accounts. 
3. Is the System registered locally in emerging markets?  
The System is registered locally in various emerging markets where one of its existing international equity managers has made investments on behalf of the System.
4. Will the System expect this mandate to be tax managed?
It is not expected that this mandate will be tax-managed as the System is a tax-exempt organization.  RFP questions regarding the tax-efficiency of the strategy should be addressed as it broadly relates to the investment manager’s procedures and/or objectives.
5. Would you accept MSCI EAFE Index or a style specific benchmark as the primary performance benchmark?
Yes
6. Would it be possible to obtain a copy of the Funds’ Investment Policy statement or investment guidelines?  Are there any specific investment guidelines or restrictions in place for international equity portfolios?
The System’s International Equity Guidelines are included at the end of this document as Exhibit A.
7. Are there any directed brokerage requirements?
While there are no directed brokerage requirements for this mandate, the System does participate in a commission recapture program.

8. Are there any securities lending requirements?
While there are no securities lending requirements, the System does participate in a securities lending program through its custodian.  
9. Does this mandate have any restrictions or limits on emerging markets exposure?  Do you have a preference regarding how the manager achieves exposure to emerging markets?  

No.

10. Are there any other restrictions such as maximum country weights, sector weights, etc.?
There are no percentage limits with regard to country, sector or industry weightings.  It is expected that the Investment Manager will use prudent investment judgment regarding the portfolio’s diversification.

11. The solicitation states that “the investment manager will attend two regularly scheduled monthly meetings of the State Board a year.”  Is it sufficient to have a client service professional in attendance?  Is it a requirement that the primary investment manager lead the presentation?  If so, will the system allow participation via telephone or videoconference?
It is acceptable to have a client service professional attend the Board meetings, but it would be expected that a portfolio manager attend at least one of the two annual meetings with the Board each year.

12. Regarding Question 28, “Please provide a representative client list, your three largest accounts in this strategy and at least three client references” – is it acceptable to provide references should we be invited to a finals’ presentation?
Yes

13. Regarding Tab 15 in the Excel spreadsheet, you clarify the requested format for the “growth of a dollar” chart?
Please provide a chart showing the cumulative dollar value that an investment in the proposed strategy would have grown to as of 6/30/08 given a $1 investment at the strategy’s inception.  
14. Our international equity strategy has less than a 3 year track record.  Does our strategy still qualify for this search?  
Yes.  It is desirable, but not a minimum requirement that the strategy being proposed pursuant to this RFP have a verifiable track record in excess of three years.  If a simulated track record is provided, it should be clearly noted as such.  
15. Our firm has less than $500 million in assets under management in the proposed strategy.  Does our strategy still qualify for this search?  

Yes.  It is desirable, but not a minimum requirement that the firm have at least $500 million in assets under management in the proposed strategy.

Exhibit A.

C.   International Equity Investment Manager Guidelines

Investment Philosophy

1.  The Investment Manager is expected to manage a portfolio of non-U.S. securities ("International Equity Portfolio"). Any significant deviation from the Investment Manager's investment style, as set forth in its contract with the Board, will require written approval from the Board. 

2.  The Investment Manager is expected to earn the highest rate of return consistent with the risk tolerance, guidelines, and performance criteria established by the Board.

3.    In the event a passive portfolio allocation is introduced to the international equity composite, the allocation is expected to match the return and risk profile (as measured by the standard deviation) of their appropriate benchmark.  

Investment Guidelines

1.        Diversification. The Investment Manager will broadly diversify investments in the International Equity Portfolio across country markets utilizing medium to large capitalization companies.

2.
The International Equity Portfolio shall consist of non-U.S. issues, including ADRs, convertible bonds, and U.S. registered securities, whose principal markets are outside of the U.S.

3.
While there are no percentage limits with regard to country weightings, the Investment Manager should use prudent investment judgment under the circumstances.

4.
Should an equity investment by an Investment Manager in any one company exceed 10%, based on cost, of the International Equity Portfolio managed by the Investment Manager, the Investment Manager will verbally notify the Board.  

5.
The cash assets of the International Equity Portfolio may be invested in short-term fixed income investments (cash equivalents). These securities may be denominated in U.S. dollars or other major foreign currencies.  Should fixed income investments exceed 10% of the total International Equity Portfolio, the Investment Manager will verbally notify the Board.

6.
Currency hedging within international portfolios is allowed up to 25%.  Hedging positions should be reported quarterly by those firms employing this strategy.
7.
See Derivatives Policy, Section VII.A. 

8  It is expected that the International Equity Portfolio will be prudently      diversified by industry and country.

9.
No leverage will be allowed in the International Equity Portfolio.

Performance Evaluation
1. The Investment Consultant shall monitor the Investment Manager's performance on a monthly basis to ensure that the Investment Manager's performance is consistent the performance required by the Performance Criteria described below.  

2.
The Investment Consultant, along with the Board, shall conduct  evaluations of each Investment Manager on a quarterly basis. .  The quarterly evaluation shall include, but not be limited to, a review of the following:

a. The Investment Manager's organizational structure, process and philosophy and personnel changes to ensure the consistency of these items over time.

b. The Investment Manager's performance relative to the Performance Criteria described below.

c. The Investment Manager's adherence to its specific style of management (i.e. growth, value, etc.)

d. The Investment Manager's adherence to these Investment Guidelines.

3.
An Investment Manager who fails to meet expectations  in any of the areas mentioned in paragraphs 1 and 2 above may, at the recommendation of the Investment Consultant, be placed on the watch list .  An Investment Manager who meets its objectives can still be placed on the theWatch List in the event of any material change  including, but not limited to the following:

a. There is a significant change in the ownership or control of the Investment Management Firm. .

b. There is a significant change in the Investment Manager's process or philosophy.

c. The departure from the Investment Management Firm  of the portfolio manager responsible for this strategy or other key or responsible personnel. 

d. Any pending litigation or SEC or other state or federal regulatory agency investigation or action.

e. The Investment Manager falls below the median in the Investment Consultant's peer group universe in a rolling three (3) year period, for (2) consecutive quarters provided however, that until the  Investment Manager has provided services to the System for three (3) years, a rolling one (1) year period shall be used.

Performance Criteria

1. Investment Manager performance shall be monitored using one-year, three-year, and five-year moving return averages compared to:

a.
The MSCI EAFE Index 

b.
A relevant style specific index such as the MSCI EAFE Growth or MSCI EAFE Value index.

c.
Relative return targets of placing within the top half of the Investment Consultant's peer group of international equity managers.

2. Performance will be reviewed for the following periods:

a.
One month, three months, calendar and fiscal year to date, one-, three- and five years.

b.
Up markets (trough-to-peak).

c.
Down markets (peak-to-trough)

3. See Communications Section VI.B.

